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AIRASIA BERHAD
{lncorparated in Malzysla)

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Diractars heraby submit thelr annual raport t the members together with the audited financial
statements af the Group and Gompany for the finahecial vear ended 31 December 2010,

FRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is that of providing alr transpottation sarvices, The prinelpal
activities of the subsidiaries are described in Mota 13 to the financial statemeants, Thers was no
significant changa In the nature of thoss acthitles during tha financial yaar

FINAMNCIAL RESULTS
Group Sompany
RK'000 000
Mat profit for the financial year 1,061,411 1,056,075
BIVIDENDS

No d'vidend has baon pald by the Company since the end of the previous financial yesr.

The Dirgctars now recemmiend the paymaen! of & firsl and final dividend in respect of lhe finangial
year anded 31 Dacampear 2010 as follows!

{h Dividend of 0.1 sen iess 25% lax per ordinary sharg of 10 22n each amaousting to
RBr18,026 403

{ii}y Tae exampt dividend of 0.02 sen par ordinary share of 10 sen each amounting to
R527 627, and

(i) Singla-tiered dividend of B.07 2en per ordinary share of 10 aen amounting to
RS, 806,738,

The flvat and Anal dividend which is sublest to lhe approval of members at the forthocaming Annual
Ganeral Maeting of the Gompany, Wil ba gaid to shiarcholders ragisterad In the Haglster of
Mambers at the close of business on 20 June 2011, Based on the issued and paid-up capital of
the Company as al the dala of this repart, the final dividenc would amount 1o RMTE860,416.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

All rnateral transfars to or from resares andg provislons during he financlal year are shown in the
fimaincie| etatements.
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AIBASIA BERHAD
{Imeorporated in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTIMUEL)

|SBUANGE OF SBHAHES

During the financial vear, the Company increased ite lssued and paid-up ordmnary share capita)
from AME75,774 468 1c RV 277,343,808 by way of lssuance of 15,891,500 cedinary shares of
RMO,10 2ach pursuand i the exarcize of the Company's Empleyes Share Option Schame
("ES0S") at an exarcise price of RM1.08 per share. The premium arls ng from the sxergise of
ESOS of RM15,377.670, has baeen credited to the Share Premium aceount,

The new ardinary shares issued durng the financiat year ranked par passu In @t respacts with the
axisting ordinary sharse of the Company. Theare were no elhar ehanges in the issued and paid-up
ghare capal of the Company durlng the finansial year.

EMPLGYEE SHARE OPTION SCHEME {*ESOS™)

The Company implemantzed an ESGE on 1 Septembar 2004, The BSOS |5 governed by the by-
laws which ware anpravad by the sharehelders on 7 June 2004 and was effective for a period of &
yaars from the date of approval. On 28 May 2003, the Company axtanded the duratian of is E508
which expired on & June 2000 by anathar 5 yaars 19 & June 2014, This was in accordanss with the
tarms of the E505 By-Laws, The ES0E extenslon was not subject ta any regulatory ot
shareholders’ approval,

Detalls of the BSOS are sal out in Mote 31 1o the financial statements.

Tha Cormpany has been granted an exarmplion by the Companles Gommlssion of Malaysia, the
informatlan of whileh has baeen separataly filsd, from having to ciscloss the list of option bolders
and thalr holdings, except for eliginle employees {inclusive of Executive Directors) with ahars
options allocation of 320,000 and ahave. Tha ermplayesa wh have bean gramted options of more
than 320,000 shares ars Date’ Sr Dr Arthony Francls Fernandees and Dato’ Kararudin Bin
Meranun, details of whish are disclosed in the section on Directors' Inlerests In Shares below.

RIRRCTORS

The Blrectars who have held offles during the pariod sines the datz of the last repart are as
feallows:

Crata' Abdal Axiz & Andul Axlz Bin Abu Bakar

Drata' 3 Dr Anthony Francis Farnandss

Bate’ Kamarudin Bin Merarun

Coror Me Garthy

Dato’ Laong Sonmy & Leong Khes Seang

Dato’ Fam Lea Ee

Chatuk Alias Bin Ali

Dato’ Mohamed Khadar Blm Marican

Mobd Crnar Bin Mustapha fAppentad on 18 March 2011)
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AlBASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Meaudysia)

DIRECTORS' REFPORT (CONTIMUELD)

DIRECTORS BENEFITE

During and at the end of tha financial year, no arrangamants subslsted to which the Company is a
parly, being arrangements with the obact or ebfects of errbling Directors of the Company to
act|ulre bonefits by roans of tha acquisition of shares in, or dezenturea of, the Company or any
octher body corporate, other than the Company’s ESOS (ses Mote 5 to the flnanclal stalemants).

Slnca the end of the previows financial year, no Dlrector has renaived or become entitled te receive
a bengtlt (other than Directors’ remuneration as disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statzments! by
reason of a contract made by the Commpany of a ralated corporation with the Direckor ar with & firm
of which he |5 a member, or with & company in which he has & subslantial financlal interest, except
as disclosed in Mote 37 to the financlal statermants,

HRECTORS INTERESTS 1N SHARES

According to the reglster of Directors' shargholdings, pariculars of intarasts of Directora whe hald
office at the end of the financial year in shares and oplions over shares in the Company #re as
follows:

Murrbar of ardinare shares of BMO.10 each
At At
11,2030 Acquired  Disposed  31,12,2010

The Company

Direat intereats _

Date' &rl Dy Anthany Francis Fornandes 2,827,010 . . 2,627,010
Date' Kamarudin Rin Maranun 1,682,900 - 4 | BG2.800
Conor Mo Carthy 20,082 003 »  BEADEDD 15,362,408
Date’ Leang Sonny 4 Leony Khee Seang 100,000 - - 100,000
Dato’ Fam Lo Ea 200,000 - (LUSRAN 100,000
Indireatintarsals

Bate’ Sei Dr Anthony Francls Fernandes * 729,458,582 - - FES,4A5HAR2
Bate' Karmarudin Bin Maranun * 720,458,382 " - 728,46R,887

¥ By virtue of thair intsrests in shares in he substantial shareholder of the Gormpany, Tune Ar
Sdn. Bhd, {"TASE"), Dato’ i Dr Anthany Fransis Fermandes and Dalo' Kamarudin Bin
Metanun are deamed to hava Interasts [n the Company ta the extart of TASE's interest
tharslr, in aveardance with Saction &4 of the Companies Act, 1865,

¥ 00,000 sharas bald in parsenal name and 12,252,403 shares hald under HSRC Maminees
fasing) Sdn Bhd,
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AIRASIA BERHAD

tneorparedsd in Malaysia)

DIRECTORS' REFPORT (CONTINUED)

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONTINUED)

Murnbor of options aver ordinary shares of AM3.10 sash
At At
1148010 Granted  Exercised a1.12.20140

The Company

Cratc’ &ri Oy Anthony Francis Farrandes 600,000 - . €00, 000
Date' Karmarudin Bin Maranun B0C,G00 - - £00,000

Other than as disclosed above, according to the register of Directers' shareholdings, none of the
ather Directors in office at the end of the financial vear hald any Intarest in shares, options over
shares and dabenturee of the Company und Its related corporations during tha financlal year,

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balore the financlal statements of the Group and the Company were made out, the Directors toak
reasanatle steps:

(&) tix aguertaln that proper action had been taken in raiatlon to the writing off of bad debts and
tha making of allowance for doubtful dokts and satisfied themselves that all known bad
debts had been wrilten off and that adaquate allowance had baan mads for doubful debts:
ahd

ik} tx engure that any current agsels, other than debts, which were Uallksly to raalise in the
ordinary eaursa of business their values as shawn In the acceunting records of the Group
and Gompany had been written down to an amount which they might be exposctsed soin
raaling.

Al the date of thls raport, the Diractors are not aware of any clreumsanzes:

(a) which wouldl randar the amounts writter off for bad debls or the amount of the allowancs
far doubtful dabis in the financial stalements of the Group and Company inadequats to
any subatantial exlent; or

(k) which would render the values attrbutad 10 currant aszats In the financial slaterments of
the Graup and Company misleading o

(o} which have arisen which render agharance to the existing method »° valuation of assets or
liatilitigs of the {Group and Company msleading or inappropriste.

Mo contingent or other liabilily has bosome anforceable ar is likely ta becorne snforceable within
the parlod of twelve months after the end of the financtal year which, in the cpinion of the
Diractors, will or may affect the akbility of the Group or Company to mesat their abligations as and
when they fall due.
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AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated M Malaysla)

DIRECTORS' REPORT {CONTINUEMD

STATUTORY INFORMATION ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUEL)
At the data of this repart, there does nat exist,

(a) any charge on the assets of the Group and Company which has arisen singe the and of
the financial year which secures the liakllity of any other parson; or

1)} any contingent liabiity of the Group and Company which has arisen sirce the end of the
financial year.

At the date of this rapor, the Directors are not aware of any cirgumstances not otherwisa dealt
with in thls repor or tha financial statements which would render any smmount stated inthe
financial statements misleading.

Iri the opinfon of tha Directors:

{a) the results ¢ the Group's and Cormpany's operations during the financial year wars not
subatartially affected by any item, transaction or gvant of 2 material and unusual nature,
cther than those arlsing from the changes in accounting pollsy disclased In Mote 2 to the
financtal stetements; and

{h} there has not arisen in the interval betwesan the end of the financial year and the date of
this repart any item, trangsciion or event of a materlal and unusual nature likaly to affact
substantially tha results of the operations of the Group end Company for the financial
year in which this report is made.

AUDITORS

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCaoapers, have exprassed their willingness to continue ir offics,

[n accargance with a resolution of the Board of Directors dated 2 fl iﬁFH EUH

ﬂ....u—qi_,"':"u:}
—

QAT SR DR ANTHONY FRANCIS FERNANDES DATO KAMARUDIN BIN MERAMNUN
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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AIRASIA BERHAD
{incorpotated in Malaysia)

INCOME STATEMENTS
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

Groun _ Comgay.
Mate 2010 2004 200 2009
Rk D05 H 000G RM'COG RR000
Ravenue 4 3,0480085 3132007 B864,450 3,072,049
Cpetating expengd
- Btaff oosts 5 {36,785 [S06,202) {358 541) {304,561}
- Dapraclation of proparty, plant
and equlpmeant 12 (510,984 (447,644) {518,958 {447,857
- Aircraft fuel expenses (1,210,108) (@=¥,728)  {1,210,108} (D27, 705
« Malnisnance, overhaul, usst
charges and othar rolated
expenaes (475,077} (410583 (478077 (410,593)
- Alrerail nparating lesse
eXpenses (B5682)  (167.251) (6%.692)  (107,251)
- Travel and tour operating
axpansag (69,634 (63,624) -
- Galn an unwinding
&f darivatives " 22 457 - 22 457
-~ Dthar oparating axpenses g {192,381 (92,1B8) {188,017 (50,543
Dth gt loesas ~ net 7 {22 418) . (22,418 ' .
Olher incame 8 35,843 102,383 35,387 102,383
Qperating orofil 1,086,861 12,754 1,080,617 BOR. B2
Finarce income ) 308,033 84,505 A0E,023 d4.4a2
Finarce costs Y (F76.1G8) {874,971 (776134) (374,971
Profit bafors taxation 1,098,858 fi2@, 208 1,082,508 B18,020
Taxatian
i
- Cyrrant taxation 10 {5,431 {11,186) {5,417} [11.18§)
- Deferrad taxalion 10 (A2,014) (104,638 (32,014} [104,835)
{3¥,445) (116,028%) {37.431) (116.021)
Met profit for the tinancial
year 1,081,411 LOB, 267 1,086,075 501,538
Earnlngs par shara {sen)
- Hasic 11 354 20.8
- Dilutad 11 a8.3 208

The notes an pages 14 to 84 form part of thase finarcial stattments.
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AIRASIA BERMAD
{Ingerparated in Malaysia)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE FINANGIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

~Prafit for the financlal yeoar

Dther comprehensive (loss)!
[rigorre

- Available-for-sale financial
asRcts 18
- Gash fow hadges
- [Foralgn eurrency ransiation
difterences

Other comprahensive losa for
the finangial year, net of tax

Total comprehansiva Incame for
the financial year

Total comprebansive incarme
atribwabfe to:
= Bguity helders of the company
~ Minarlty Interasts

Giroup ... Dornpany
2010 2008 2010, 2008
AM'00Q RWOC0 ARFDO0 RM'000
1,061,411 506,287 1,055,075 501,995
4,27 - 4,279
{5,636} - {5,838
(107) .
(1,467} {1,360}
1,050,544 EN8,287 1,063,715 501,099
1,059,544 506,267
ROB,J6T

1,085,344

TSESIAMAAT Y

The notas an pagaes 14 to 24 form part of these financial staternents,
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AIRASIA BERHAD
(Incorparated in Malaysia)

BALANCE SHEETS A3 AT 31 DECEMBER 2010

MOH-CURREMNT ASSETS

Property, plant and sgulpment

Investment in subsidiaries

Investrnent in agsociaies

Avallatns-for-sale financial
ABEQE

Other invastmants

Soodwlll

Dafetred tax assels

Feceivables and prapayments

Amourt due fromn a jointly
controlled antity

Amount due lrom en assaciate

Dativative financlal instrumants

CURRENT ASSETS

[mvantaries

Recelvablas and prapaymants

Daposits on alrcraft puichase

Arnounts due frarm sutwidiaries

Amaunt aug from a folntly
controlled entity

Amaovnts due from assogiates

Amaunl due from a related
party

Depnsits, cash and bank
halances

12
13
15

16
17
18
18
20

29

22
30

23
20

24

21
22

24

243

Group ompany

2010 2008 2010 2008
FAO00 R OO0 RAANOG0 Rk D00
9,318,041 7042 1488 9,418,502 7,941,203
) . 25 Aad 22104

20 24 29 24
152,842 . 152,242 -
28 26,704 25 26,704

g,7ag B,7328 ! - -
718,260 TH1,2T4 714,260 7o1,274
29,500 23,553 23 593 23,5043

“ 171,685 - 171,885

117,264 253,037 117,884 253,087
25,544 - 26,544 "
10,366,136 9177448 10,381,333 9,190,009
17,553 20854 17,008 0916
a41,122 ¥a1,0R2 B15,021 719,808
248,684 330,078 240,684 A30,878

- - 432,382 157,628

oa o2 194,503 - -
162,006 203,830 162,366 203,930

- 3,303 - 3,803
1.504,617 F4HE 812 1,498,061 s 345
2,874,164 2,220,970 a4 176 433 2.8221 108
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AlRASIA BERHAD
(Innorporated in Malaysia)

BALANCE SHEETS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2010 {CONTINUED)

Nete,

LESS: CLRREMNT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payablas 25
3ales In advarce
Amounie due to sybaidiaroes 27
Amotnl Gua to a |eintly

controlled entity 21
Amournl due to an assockate 2
Amaunt dus to a related party a7
Hire-purchase payables 28
Barrowings 28
Codrrant 1 Takllities
NET CURRENT ASRETS
NOMN-CURRAENT LIABILITIES
Hirg-purchase payables 28
Borrawings o0

Darivative financial ingtramanls a0

GAFITAL AND RESERVES

Share capizal at
Share pramlim

Foreign exchange reserve

Rotained earnings az
C3ther resarvas

Sharaholderg’ equity

Group Somoany

2010 2009 2010 2009
FhA'000 HMann BM'D00 MM OO0
512,843 872,000} 804,344 ani 847
SR8 840 283,224, a0y,887 2¥2, 384

- " 44,251 20,065

. " S22.614 -

5,208 2382 Rl 3,382
41,282 - 41,242 .
15 &6 15 oL

554 4967 a40.212 503 87 540,242
1832 o824 958 9,804
1,843,501 1,700,658 2180618 1,715,704
1,083,573 511,284 1,074,821 504,397
. "5 . 1G
7,802,884 7 O6T 606 Ta02 884 7087606
A58 065 " 452, BaH -
7,755,748 FOR7, 712 FornE, 740 TR, 718
3,640,950 #,6827,024 5,640,405 2,628,604
277, 844 2TE, 77 2FF 244 aFR, T4
1,221 564 1,206,216 1,881,544 1,206,218
484 san - .
2102571 1,143,438 2,102 30 1,144,704
35,986 - 38, 466 -
S$,840,560 3,640,408 2826 694

2,821,020

& SRR

The notes on pages 14 1o 54 forrm part of thess financlal statemeants,
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AIRASIA BERHAD
{Incorporated in Malaysia)

CABH FLOW STATEMENTS
FOH THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

Group e e OTODIETY
2010 2008 2010 2008
EtRAOCD RGOS0 RA000 Ri'000
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit batars axation 1,005 856 Ba3, 280 1,082,506 618,020
Ad|ustrents;
Proparty, plant and aguipment
- Dapreciatlon 519,964 447 544 514,068 447,657
- Impairment 6,996 - £.005 -
- Wirlte oiff - 488 - g8
- Gain on dispaszals {1,311} {30,696) (1,3113 {30 696
Amartisation of long tenn prepaymants e, 741 8,845 24,741 B.545
Amortisatian of other investrhents ‘2 11 12 11
Unwinding of discount on intercampany
receivables (3,647 - (8,847
Falr valug lossas on detivathva financial
instruments 245,028 . 295 028
Met unraslized foreign exclhiange
gain (586,755) (398, 742) (&a8,7 60 (39,742
Interest expensa 374,384 371,153 Brd, a8 71,153
Interest ingome (66,809) 18,500 {66,689 {6,257)
1,655,569 1,374,341 1,649 198 1,370,159
Changes in warking capital:
Invantorlss 3311 (18 3,311 {179
Receivables and prepayments (162,803 {28,458 {139,048} {28,864)
Trade and olher pavablas 85,483 L) 35,177 B9,716
Intercampany balancas 383,668 {166,457} 401,920 (1B5,435)
Cash generated from
operations 1,953,018 1,25%,G1% 1,550,560 1,256,302
Intarest paid {379,009 {322 407 (979,009) (322,407)
Utilization of provigion for loss on
unwirding of darivatives - {151,713) . (151,719
Interest reneived 57052 6,300 57,048 6,257
Tax pald (11,848 (5.578) {11,519) (5,578)
Met cash from nparating
781,851

acdlvities 1,819,183 TR e 1,617,184

13
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AIRASIA BERHALD

{Incarparated in Malaysia)

CASH FLOW STATEMENTS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAH ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

GASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Praperly, plant and seuipensot

- Additions

- Progeads from disposals

Investrrant na subsldiang company

Daposits on lease of alcraft

Furchases of gvailable-for-sale
finanqis! azsets

Mat cash used in investing
activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Procesds from allotmant of shares

Hire-purchase instalments peid

Proceeds from borrwings

Repaymert of berrewlngs

Depasis (plodgediraleased as
securtics

Mot cash from financing activitles

NET INGHEASBE
FOR THE FINANGIAL YEAH

CASH AND GAGH EQUIVALENTS
AT BECINNING OF THE:
FINANCIAL YEAR

CASH AND CARH
EGUIVALENTS AT ENPD OF
THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Group Company
2010 2008 2010 2008
RM'T00 AM:COQ AN OCD M0
(1,902,833) {1,047,762) (1,902,253} (1,047,746}
- 182,538 - 182 558
- - (3,160 .
50,808 (12,243) 50,808 (12,248)
{16,000 . (16,000}
(1,866,026)  (1,777.488)  {1,B70,635) (1,777.451)
16,948 508,217 16,948 509,217
(57} (77} (57} (77}
1,562,866 1,670,300 1,562,806 1,670,390
(572580)  (583,131) (5728800 (593,131
(9422 g 112 (942) 5112
10068205 1,581,801 1006225 1,501,511
757,463 547,662 TER A 506,011
718,466 120,808 717,488 121,487
1,475,828 718485 1,470,272

The notes an pages 14 ke 84 form parl of these firancial statemants,
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NCOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — 31 DECEMBER 2010

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal aetivity of the Company iz that of providing alr transportation setvices, The princlpal
activilies of the subsidiaries are described in Mol 13 to the financial stalements. Thers was no
cignifigant change in the nalura of nese aclivitios dudng the Bhancial yesr,

The atdress of the registered olfice of the Company is as Tellows;

25-5, Block H

Jatan FJUAE7, Dataresr Prina
47301 Petaling Jaya

Selangar Darut Ehgan

The address of the principal place of business of the Company is as fallows:

LGG Tatrminal

Jalan KLIA 83
Southern Support Zohe
KL Intematianal Airport
64000 Sapang
Belangar Darul Engan

The finangial stetements have bean approved for lssus in accordancs with # resolution of tha
Board of Diraciors on 28 Apil 2011,

BUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES

Linlzss cthenvise stated, the following accounting palicies have been applied cons'stently in
desling with iterns ihal are conslderad matarlal In relation to the financial statersents:

{a) Basiz of preparation of the tinancial stalements

The financlal statementis of the Group and the Company have been prapared in
accordange with Financial Reporting Standards (FREs', the Malaysian Aceouniing
Standards Board ('MASE' approved acoauntng standards In Malaysia for Entlities Cther
than Private Entitles, and comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1985,

The fnancial statsrnents af the Greup and Company hizva bean prepared urdar the
hilgterical cost cotwention excapt as d'sclosed in the accounting policies halow.

The preparation of finansil stataments in confarmity with FREs and the provisions of the
Companias Act, 1865 requires the uae of cartain aritical accounting estimatas and
assumptions et afect the reportad amounts of agsels and Nubilties and the disclosure of
contitigent assats and labiities at the date of the financial stataments, and the reported
amaounta of the revenus and exbensas during the reporled Bnancial vaar, £ also requires
Dlrectors to exercise their judgrnent in the process of applying the Group's accourting
policies. Although these estimates and judgment are based an the Directars’ bast
knowledga of cutrent events and actions, actual results may dif*er.

Tra areas ovalviag a higher degree of judgment or complaxlty, or areas whars

assumptions and estimates are siguificant to the Group's and the Company's financial
statements are disclosed in Mote 3 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

BUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTIMNG POLICIES (CONTINUED

{a) Bass of praparatier of the financtal statemanta {continued)
Standards, amendments to puhliahed standards and Interpretations that are effestive
The rewe accounting standards, amendments and improverents to publizhad standards

and interpretations that are sffective for the Group and Compamys financial veas
baginnlng on or after 1 January 2010 are as tollows:

* FAH 4 “Inguranse Contract”

x FHS ¥ “Finanamal Instrurments: Disclosuras" and the related Amendimants

n FHS 8 "Cperating Segments”

° FHE 101 {revised) “Frezentafion o Financial Statements

* FRES 123 "Borrowing Oosts"

¥ FRS 138 "Flnancial Instrumenie: Aecognition and Maasurament” and the related
Amegndments

. Amendrznt 1 FRS 1 "Firstime Adoptlon of Flnanckal Maporing Standards” and
FHE 127 "Consolldated and Separate Financial Stataments: Cost of an
lnvestment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Centralled Entily or Assoclats”

) Amendment to FHS 2 "Share-basad Payment: Yesting Condltions and
Cancallatlong’

] Amendmants to FRS 132 “Financial [natruments: Presentatiorn” and FRS 104
(-eviaed) "Presentallen of Financlal Statamants” - Puitabls financlal instrumants
and obligatlons atising on lguldation

a I Interpratation ¥ 'Meassassmeant of Embedded Derivatives® and |he ralated
Amendmeants

" |C Interpratalion 14 “Inkeim Financial Raporting and lmpaltmeant”

" I3 Interpeatation 11 "FHE 2 Group and Trepsury Share Transactiong”

. IC Interpratation 13 "Cuskamer Lovally Programmes”

. & Interpretation 14 "FRS 112 The Wmit on a Defined Benafit Azset, Minirmum
Funding Requiramerds and Thelr Inferactian”

o tmprovements to FRSs (2008}

The adoption ¢f thase new FRSs, amendments and Intarpretations do not bave any effect
an the financial performance er financial position of 1he Group Bnd Garnpany except for
those digcuesed balow,

il Hevised FRS 101 "Preaentation of Financiel Statemesis”

The revised standand prohiblts the presentation of items of ircome and expeanses
{that is, ‘non-cwner changes in equity’) in the staterment of changes in aquity,
raquiring 'non-cwnsr changes in equity' to be presentad separately from owner
chargias in equity in a statement of comprehensive inoome which can e
presented as & single statemeant or e statements (camprlsing the incame
statement and staternsent of cornprehensive incame), The Group has slectad Lo
praseant the statament of comprebensive incoma in twe statemants, As a result,
the Group has presented all owner changes in equity in the consolidated
statsrmant of changss in aguity whilat all non-awnar changess in equity have basn
pragented in the consolidated staterment of comprahens ve incame, There is no
imgract on the sarnings per share since thess changses affect only he prazentation
of items of income and expenses,
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NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

BUMMARY OF BIEANIFICANT ACCGUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

() Basiz of preparation of the finansial statements [centinuad)

(i

(il)

Prior to 1 Janua-y 2014, information about financial Instruments wae disclosed In
accordance with the requirensnts of FRS 182 “Financlal [nstruments ;: Dissiosure
and Prasentation”. FRS ¥ nfreduces new disclosuras to improve the information
about financial instiuments. 1 requires the disclosure of qualitative and
quantilztive infarmation aboul exposiie to risks ansing from financial ivstruments,
including specifiod minlmum disclosures about credlt visk, liguidity Hak and markat
fsk, including sensitivity analysis ta marlet rigk.

The Group and the Cormpany have applied FRS 7 prospectivaly in ascordancs
with the transition provisiona. Flence, the new disclogures have not been appllad
to the comparativea. The new disclosures are ineluded roughout the Group's
arel the Compainy's financial slatements far the financial vear ended 31 Decambear
2010, As the adoption of this new accounting standard sy results in additianal
disclasures, thers is na imgact on earltgs par shars.

FES £ "Operating Ssqments®

FRS 8 raquires segment inforrmatlon 1 be prasanted on a simdisr basis to that
used for internal reporting purposes. As a result, the Group's segraenial reporling
hed been presenizd based on the internal reparting to the chisf operating desision
maker whis rivkas declgions onlhe allocation of resources and asseswas the
parformance of the reportakble segments. This standard doees not bave any impact
en the finangial pesition and results of tha Group. The ragulred disclosyres ara
shown in Mola 38 to the finansial stataments,
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUER)

SUMMAHY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED
fa) Basis of praparation of the financial statements {comtinued)

(vl FRS 138 “Flrancis] Instrurnents: Recognition and Measuremen:”

EFRS 132 aciablishes principlas for racognising and measuring financkl asseta,
financlal llablies and sorme sontracts to buy and sell non-firanclal itsme. The
Group and the Company have adopted FRS 132 prospectivaly o 1 January 2010
in accordance wih he ransltional provisians,

The adeption of FIE 1389 has reaulted in several changss to accounting polleiss
relating o recognition and measurament of financial instruments. Cornparatives
far finarcla! Instrurmnents have not been adjusted and tharefore the corespanding
balances ars not comparable, Significant changes tn aceounting policies arg as
fallgwa:

(i} Investments

Mon-curranl invesimeants, pravious'y measured at cosl ahd subject to
Impalrment, are now classifisd A8 available-for-sala firancial asgats.
Theea arg inilially measurod {a) at fair value plus transaction casts and
subsaguently at fair valus or (b unless fair value cannet be rellabhy
messurad dus to the variability in the range of reascrable fair value
estimatas is gignificant for that Investrant or the probatilities of the
various estimalas within the range cannot be reasonably assesssd and
bsed In astimating fair value; in such gase, they are meazured at cost
less impairment lossas, They are included in non-cukrent assets Yrikiss
managermeant intanda to disposa of the investmant within 12 montig of
the reporting date.

Chrnges in falr valuas of avallabils-for-sale equlty securities ars
recagnised in othar comprahensive income, togethar with the relaten
currency translation ditferences. A signiticant ar prelonged decline in the
fair value of the sacurily balow its eost is considered as an indicalsr that
the Anset Is mpalrad. If any such evidehce exista, tha cimalative loss,
rmessured as the diffarence between the aoqulaition cost and the current:
fair value, lzas any Impalrment luss proviously recogrised in the Income
glatemant, ls remoeved from agqulty and racogniaed in the incotne
statomant, Irpairment leases recognined in the Incomea statement an
equity instruments classlfied as avallable-for-sale are seversad througn
ather compraneaslva Income and not through the income sketement.

Whean securiiies clusslfied as available-for-zale sre sold, 1he accurmulatar
fair value adjustments rezagnised in other compiehanslve income are
included in the income stalamant, Reer to MNaote 40 for the impeact of thie
changs in accounting policy,

17



Caropany No.

284665

WY

AIRASIA BERHAD

{Incorporated in Ma aysial

NCOTES 70O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 [CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOLUNTING POLIGIES {CONTINUED

fah Basis of preparation of the financial statements (centinued)

(v}

FRS 138 “Financial Insiruments: Recognitton and easurement” {santinuead}

Derivatlves

Prior 1o 1 January 2011, derivative financll ingtruments wers not
racognised in the financlal statements on inception, With the adoplion of
FRE 138, derfvative financial instruments are initially recognissd at fair
value af the defe the de-ivallve conlract ls entered into and are
subzeguantly rameasured at thelr fair values.

The Group has applied the new paliey accorging to the transitional
provisions by recepnizing and measuring denveiives, as appropriate, and
recording any adjustmants to the previous carrying emounts to the
opening retalned eamings o, if approprale, anothoer categery of equity, of
the currant financial year. The method of recegnlsing the rasulting gain ar
loss depands on whathar the datlvative | declgnated 55 a hedglng
instrument (eee acocunting policy Mote 2(0). Hefar be Note 44 for the
impact of this changs in accousting polley.

Intercampany loans

During tha currant amd pror yaars, the Company granted interest-lrae
loans and advances to its subsidiaries. Prior o 1 January 2010, these
loans and acvances wara reccrdad at cost in the Corrpany’s financial
gtataments, Lpon the adapllon of FRS 188, the Interest-free joans or
advances are recorded initially at a fair value that is lawer than cost. Tha
difference betwaen the fair vrlue and cost of the loan or advance i=
rectanlsed as adlustmants to the opaning balance of retainad earnings.
Subgaguent to initial recogniticn, the loans and advancea are measuned at
amertized cost, Refer to Note 40 far the impact of this chaoge in
aceounting policy,

Loans and receivabias

Mon-currant receivablas, previously meessured at invoiced amount and

subject fo impairnent, are now classifiec as loans and recelvables and
maasirad «t fair valus plus transaction costs Initla’y and subsegusntly,
at amottised cost using the effective interest method.

Whan [bans and receivables are impaired, the carrying amount of thie
asset iz reduced and the amaunt of the lgsa is recognised In the Income
stakemant, Impalrmant loss is measured as the diffarance between the
asset’s canying amount and the present value of eslimated futurs cash
flows {excluding fuiure cradit lossas that hava not been Incurred}
discounted at the agset’s original elfeclive interast rata.

[f, in a subsequent period, the amaunt of the impairmeant loss decreases
and the decreasa can ba related chjectively ta ar event cocurring after
the impairment was recogniasd {such as an improvament In the debtor's
cradit rating}, the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is
recognised in the income slatameant,
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NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 [GONTINUEDR)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a) Basis of preparaticn ot the linancial statements {zontinused)

fiveh FRS 139 "Financial Ingtruments. Bosconition_and Measurement” (continued)

Prios to 1 Jardary 2310, the Group aleo stated its othar non-gurrent flnancial
lizbilities at undiscountad ameunt pavakile, Wilh the adsptlon of FRS 139, these
finarnclal labilitles ara Inltlally rsasured at fair value and subsequently &l
amortised cosl using he effective interest rafe mathod,

In accorlarce with the transitional provistons for the first time adoption of FRS
13%, the above changss in acccunting policy have been accounted far
praspectively and the comparalivas as at 31 December 2309 are not restated,
Rafar to MNcte 40 for tha Impact of this change In accounting pollcy.

Standarda, emendments to published standards and interpretations to existing
standards that are applicable to the Group snd Company but hot yet effective and
have not heen early adoptad

Tha following new and revised standards, Interpretations and amendmentls to standards
hava been published and are mandatory for the Group's accounling periods beginning on
orafter 1 January 2011 or later parlods, but the Group has not satly adopted them;

- The revised FRE 3 "Businesa combinations” [effective prospenctively for
acaounting period beginning 1 July 2070 continues to apply the acquistion
mathod to hushass combinations, with some signifleant changes. Eor axample, all
payments to purchase a businges are to be recorded al feir value at lhe
acquisition date, with cantingent payments classified as dobt subseguently ra-
measured thraugh the incomea stalement. Thare 15 4 choice on an acquigition-ty-.
acquisition basls to measurs the minarity Interest in the acquires sither ai lalr
valug or at the non-controlling intareal’s propartianate share of ihe asguires’s nat
assets, All aguuisition-relaied costs should be sxpansed. The Group will apply
FRS 3 [ravised) prospectively to all buginess combinations from 1 January 2011,

- The revized FRS 124 "Halatad party disclasures” {efactive from 1 January 2012)
ramavas the exemption to disclase transactions betwesn governiment-related
entities and the government, and ali other governmeant-related antlites. The
following new diselosures are now requirard far goverrmant related entitles:

- Tha name of tha gevernment and the nature of thair relationahip;

- The naturs and amaunt of each Individually sigrificant transactions; snd

. The extent of any eollectively significant transections, qualitatlvely or
opantitativaly,

Fhiz stanaard is not expected to have a matarizl impact on the eamings per share
sines thase changas only result in addtlznal dlsclosures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 {CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

fa)

Basis of praparation of the financial statements {continead)

Etandards, amendments te published standards and Interpretations to existing
standards that are applicable to the Group and Cormpany but net yet effectlve and
have not bean sarly adopied {contlnued)

The revised FRES 127 “Consalldated and separals fnancia, staterments” {applios
prospacthvely to transactlans with nor-cortrolling interests from 1 Juiy 20103

“ar Jires tha effects of all transactions with non-contrpling interasls fo ba recorded
in equity if there s ne change in controel and theses ransastions will no ‘onger
resull I goodwill or gains and losses, Whan this standard is eifective, all earmings
and losses of the subsidiary are attribiled 1o the parent and the non-contralling
interast, even if the atrbution of losses 1o the nen-cantrollng Interast results noa
debit halanse in the sharsholdars’ equity. Profit or lnss attribution to nan-
conttolling interests for prior years is not restated. The standard alsa specifies the
secotnting when central is Iost, Any remaining intarest I Lthe antity is re-measured
te fair value, and a galn or loss ls recagnisad nthe Income staternent. Tha Group
will apply FRS 127 {revieed) prospactivaly to transactiona with minorlty Interests
from 1 Janugny 2011, This standard ia not expected to have & material impact on
the Group's financial staternents,

Amendrents to FR3 7 "Financial instruments ; Improving Dlsclosures® and FAS 1
*First-time adeption of financial reporting standards” {sffacive from 1 January
2011} regulres enhancad disclosuras abaut falr valuz meesurements and lguidity
risk. In parttcular, the amendment reguires disclosure of fair value measurements
by level of a fair vabue measurament erarchy, The Group and Gompany will
apply Amendmanks to FRS 7 from 1 January 2011, Thiz standard is nod expected
to hawe a matarial Impact on eamings per share since these changas enly result in
additional disclosuras,

Amandments to FHRS 132 "Financial instruments : Presentation” on classifieation
of rights issue (&Tfective [rom 1 March 2010] addresses accounting for rights
isgLes that are dencminated in currency sther than the functional currency of the
igguar, Provided cartain conditions are met, such rights issues are now slassified
a6 equity instruments instead of as derivative linbilities, regardless of the currency
inwhich the erercigs price is denominatad. The Group and Campany will apgahy
Amandments to FRS 132 "Clessiflation of Rights lssues™ prospegtively from 1
Jamuary 2611, Thiz standard is not expectad to nave a materdal impast on the
Group's and Company’s Tinancial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUEL)

SUMMARY OF BIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{a) Basls of prepa-ation of t1e financial statamants (sontinued)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations ta existing
stahdatds thal are applicable to the Group and Company but not yet effective and
have not keen early adoptad {continued)

IS Interprelatior 16 "Agreaments far congtruciton of real estades” {effective fram 1
January 2012) supersatles FAS 201 "Property developimant actlvities" and
elarifles thal property deveiopment activities are sale of goods, instead of
gonatructien contracts. 1C Interpretation 15 will result In & changs In aceounting
policy for revanue recognition far propery developraert activilies of the Group
from percentage of completion method to completion methad whers revenue can
anly be recognisad when tha Group has ransfsrred control and the significant
tisks and rawards of ownership of the complated propartiss to the buyer,

|C Interpretation 16 "Medyss of 4 net inveatmant In 2 forelph operation” {effective
frem 1 July 20103 clarfles the accounting treatment In raspect of net invastment
hadging. This includes the fact that net investment hedging relates 1o differences
in functicnal currency, not presentation currenoy, anc hedging instruments may b
held by any entity in the Group, The requiremesnts of FRS 121 "The effects of
changas It foralgh exchange rates" do apply to the hedged iterm. This I is not
expatted to have a material impact on the Group’s and Company's financial
staterments.

|G Interpretation 17 "Distribution of non-eash assets to owners” {effoctive from |
July 201Q) provides guidance an accounting far arrangernents whereby an entity
dlgtribiutas non-cash assats to shareholders slher as a distribution of ressrvas or
as dividends. FRS £ has alec been amendad to require that assets ars classified
ae held for dietribution enly when they are availakble {or distrinudlon in iheir presant
eondifior. and lhe distrlbution la klghly prabable. This K2 s not expected to have a
rnedetlal Iimpact oh the Group’s or Comparny's financial staternents,

I Intgrpratation 18 *Transfers of assets from customers” (effective prospactively
for asaots received on or aftar 1 Jaruary 2011} provides guidance wherg an entity
receives from a customer an tem of propery, plant and equipment [sr cash to
acquire such an assat) that the entity must then use to connect the customar to &
netwaork ar ta provide the custornal with senvices. Whare the anafaread ltarn
meeta the definition of an asset, the asselia recognised as an ltem of propary,
plant and aquipmant at ks fa’r valua, Revenus s racognised for each separgte
sarvice paformad in eccordancs with the recognltion aritaria of FAS 118
*Hevenue". The Group and Company witl apply this |G Interpratation prospeativaly
fearr 1 January 2011, This 10 is nof expactad to have a raterial impact o the
Group's or Gompany's financle’ etatements,
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 [CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{2)

Basis of praparatien of tha financial statemants {confinuad)

Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations te existing
standards that are applicable to the Group and Company but not yet effective anc
have not heen early adopted (continued)

-

I Inferpratation 18 “Extingulshing financial kabilities with equity instruments”
{eftactive fram 1 July 2011) providaes clarificarion when an ety renegotiates 1o
terma of a financial liadility with It ereditor ard the croditar agress to accept tha
antity’s shares or ather squity Instrurnents to setile the financial linkility fuly or
partially. & gain or loss, balng the diference betwesn the carrying value of the
financial liakility and 1he fair valus of the equity instrumants issued, shall be
racagnised in the income stalement. Entit'es are no lenger permitted to raclassify
the carnving value of the existing financial liability into equity with no gain ar lees
recagnised |hthe Income statemenl. Thig |1C iz nol expectad to have a materlal
impact on the Group’s ar Company's financkal statements,

Arngndmants to [T laterpretation 14 “FRS 119 - The limit on a defined benafit
assets, minlnum funding reguiraments and their Interaction” (effective from 1 July
2017} permits an antity to fecoonisa the prepaytrents of contributions as an asset
rathar than an expenss In circumstances when the entily is sutject to a minlmum
funding requirement end makes an early paymant of contrbutions to mast thoss
requirerments. Thia 13 g not expacted to have 4 maletal impast on Group's or
Campany's financlal statsrhants.

t
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SUMBARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (GONTINUEL
(a) Basis of preparatioh o the financial statements {santinued)

The following amendmants are part of the MASE's improvements project thal are
televant and effective for ernual perlads baglonlng on or after 1 July 2010

Impravemeonts to FRSs!

- - FRS 2 (affectva from 1 Juiy 2010 slarifies that contributions of a business an
farmation of a joint venture and comman cantrol transactlons are outsida the
scopa of FARE 2,

- FRS 3 {effectiva from 1 January 2011}

. Clarifies that the choics of measurlng nor-cantrglling interssts at fair value
or at the proportionate share of the acquires's net assets applies only o
instruments that represant treaent ownarship intarasts and entitie thaly
ho'dars to & propattionate share of the net assets in the event of
lieulddatian, All other componenta of non-contralling Intetast ara maaaured
at fair value unlesa sncthar measuremeant basls |5 required by FRS.

- Clarlfias that the amendments to FRS 7, FRS 132 and FRS 139 that
gliminete the exermption for cantingen consideration, do nat apply to
conlingent consldaration that arese from business combinations whogs
scgulshion dates preceds the application of FRS 3 {2013). Thoss
contingent consideration arangements are to be ascounted for in
accordance wilh the gudanes in FRS 3 {2005).

“ FRE & *Mon-cLirrant assat held for sale and dissontinued operations™ {effective
from 1 July 2010) < arflies that all of a subsldlarys assats and liakilities ang
classified as held for sale if a partial dispoesal sale plan resulls in loss of control,
Rrtavant dlsciosure should be made for this eubsidiary If tha definition of 8
discontinued oparation ia mes.

- FRS 101 “Pregentation of financia! staternents™ (effective fror 1 January 2011}
clarfies that an antity shall prasen: an analysis of other comprahensive Income for
each cemponent of aquity, cither in the staterment of changes in squity or in the
rclas ta the financial staternents,

- FRS 138 “Intangibly Assets® (effective from 1 July 2010) clarifies that a group of
corplemantary Iniangible assets acquired in a business combination may be
recagnieed aa A sindle asset i each asset has gmiar useful lives,

|G Intarpresation 8 {sffactive from 1 July 2013) clarifles that this irterprelation doos
nol apaly t ernbedded dativatives in contracts acquired i g buslness
combination, businesaes under common control or the foarmatiar. of @ jaink vetture.

The above mantioned Impravament to FRSs ara not expected to hava any matarlal impact
on the Graup'a and Ceinpany's finenclal statements,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGMNIFICANT ACCCUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED!
{t} Group accournting
(i) Subsliarios

Subsidiaries ara thuse carporations or other sntizles (including special purposc
ghitliles) In which the Group has power to exercise control ovar the financial and
operating policies so as 1o obtain benafite from their activit'as, generally
accampanying & sharehaldag of mors than one half of the voting rights. The
gxistongs and efect of potanilal voting rights that are currently exerclsalts or
convertible are congiderad when assessing whather the Grown controls another
entity,

Subsldlarles are consolidated using the purchasa method of accounting. Under
the purchage mathod of accaunting, subsidlaries are fully consolidated fram the
date on wihich eontrol s transferrad to the Greup and are exeludead from
conaalldation fram the dats that contrel ceases. The cest of an acquisition is
measured as the fair value of the aasets givan, aqully Insttuments issuad and
llabilltles ineurrad or agsumed at tha date of exchange, plus costs directly
aftriblitabla to the acquisition.

[dentifiable nssets duaquired, liabitities and centingent liabilities assumed in 4
busliness comblnallon are measured initially at thair fair values al the acgquisition
date, irrespective of the extent of any minarity interesl, The excess of the cosl of
acguisition over ths fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable net agssets
Aoduirad at the date of asquisition is recorded as goodwill, If the coet of
acqulsition is less than the {eir value of the Group's shara of nat assets of the
subsidiany acquired, the difference is recognised tirectly In the conaslidated
incame statamant (sae Note 2(c) oh goodwill).

Minoiity intereste rapresant that partion of the proflt or less and net assets of
subsidiares slirbutable 1o sgulty nterast that are not owned, direatly or Indirectiy
through the subsldlaes, by the parent. It is measured at the minarltlss’ shers of
the fair values af the subsidiaries' idenlifiabla assets and lakilitias at the

sguisition date and the minorittes' share of changas in subsidiaries' equity since
that date. Separate disclosurs is made of minarity interests.

Intragraup transacliong, balances and unrealised galns or lossss on langactions
batween Qroup companies ale eliminatad.  Accounting policiss of subsidiaries
have been changed whers nacessaty to ensure conslstency with the actounting
acliches adaptad by tha Group.

The gain or loss on dispesal of @ subsidlan s the difference between the net
disposal prosesds and the Group's share of the subsidiany's nel assets as of the
data of dispasal, including the cumulefive amasunt of any exchange differences
that ralate to thet subsidiary which were praviously recognised in aguity, and is
recagnised in the conaolidated income statemant,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 BECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF

SIGHIFIGANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED?

(b Group accaunting {continuad)

(]

Jointly controlled erititfes

Jointly controlled entilies are corporallons, partnarships or other entilies over
which thers ls contractually agresd sharing of control by the Group Wit one or
triote patles whare the strategic financial and operation declslons refating to the
entity requires unanimous carsent of the partiss shating contral,

The Geoup's Intarest in jointly controdlad entities is acoounted for ir the
sonsolidated financial statements using the equity methed of acoourting as
deaaribed in hate 2(101i).

The Group's share of [ty Jointly cordralled antltiss' post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognlgad In tha consolldatsd income statement, and its sharg of post-
avquisition movements in reserves is recognised withiin resesvas. The cumulative
post-acquiaition mavemen:s are adjustad against the carrylng amount of the
investmerits. WWhan the Group's share of losses In jointly controlled enitles equals
ur greeeds its interast in the jointly controlled ertities, including any ather long-
tarm Interests that, in substance, Torm part of the Graws’s nat investmant In those
antities, the Group digeonlinues resognising ks share of futher losges.

After the Group's Interest is reduced 1 rero, additional losses are provided for,
and & liablity iz recognisad, only 1o the extenl Lhal the Group has incurred logal or
aransttuctive obligations or made paymerts on behalf of the jaintly contrathar
antitles, If 1ha |ointly controffed entitizs subsequently report profits, the Group
resumes récognising its share of those profits only aflar ita share of tha profils
enjuals the share of losses hot recognlzed.

Unranlised gains on transactions between the Group and its jaintly sontrolied
sntities ate eliminated to the extert of the Graup's interest I the jointly contiolled
entities; unrealised [osses arg also sliminated unless the transaction provides
aevitdanse of an Impairment of the asset transferred. Whare nacessary, in applying
tha equity method, appropriate adjustments are made 10 the financial statermenks
of the jointly cantralled entltfes W ensure sonsistancy of ascounting pallelss with
those of the Qroup.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 [CONTINUELY

SUMMARY OF BIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING PQLICIES (CONTINUED)
(k) Group aceounting (continued)
filiy Aasotiates

Asscoialos are carpatations, partaarshlps or other entitles 0 which the Group
exarcizes slgnificant influence but which i does not confbrol, ganerally
accompanying a sharehglding of betwesn 20% and 50% of the vofing rights,
Significant Influsrics is the powar to particlpate in the financlal and operating palloy
decisions of the associetes but not contrdl over thoes policies.

lnvagimants In assoclates are accolntad for [n the consolidated financial
statarmnents using the equity methed of accounting. Equity accounting is
discontinued when the Group ceases to have eignificent influence over the
aszoctates. The Group's iInvestmenta In assoctates Include geodwlll idantitiad on
avquisition, net of any accumulated Impairment loss (s Nota 2(a)),

The Group'a ahare of iis asacciales' post-acquisition profits or losass s
ractnlsad in the consolidated Income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
mevamants in reservas |s recognised within resarves. The cumulative post-
anguisltion movements are adiusted against the carrying amount of tha
Imvastrents. When the Group’s share of losges In an assoclate eguals or
excasds it Interect In the assackte, including any other lang-tarrr Interests tht,
in substance, furm part of the Group's rel investimerl in the assoclats, the Group
dizgontinuas recognising its share of turther [pgses.

Afler the Group's ntarest is reduced 10 zers, sddilional lasses are provided for,
and a liakility is recagrigad, only o the extent that the Group has Incurred legal or
aonstructive obligetions or made payments on behalf of the aasaclats, IF he
as=ociete subsecuently reports prafits, the Grolp resumes recognising its share of
these otofits only after its shara of the profits aguals the share of lesaes not
tacognised.

Unreabsaed galns on trangactlons bobween the Group and 18 aasociales are
slifninated to the extent of the Grol|7's inlerast IR the assoolates; unrealiast lossas
are also elimfnatad uriess the transaction provides evidence of an impairmant of
the assct ransforrad. Whers necessary, in applying the equity method,
aparoptlate adjustments ara made to the fnancial statements of the assoclates
engLire consistency of acoounting policies with thase of the Group.

28



oty Mo,

[ 2BABBY | W

AIRASIA BERMAD
{Incorporated in Malaysla)

NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS -« 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY GF SIGMNIFIGANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES [CONTIMUED)

(o)

{el)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the axcess of the cost of sequisition of subsidiaries over the Group's
share of the falr valls of the identifiable #et assets including contingent lighillies of
sUbsidiaries at the date of agguisition.

Goadwill is sartied at cost lese acournulated imoairment lasses. Goodwill s tested for
impairtment at least annually, or whan events or clrcurstances osour indicating that an
impairment may exist, Impairment of goodwill 18 charged 1o the consolidated incame
stalament as and whar it arises. Impairment losses or goodwill are not raverzed. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwdl relating to
the entity dizposed,

Goodwil |5 allocated to cash-genearating units for the purpose of impairment testing. Each
cash-ganeraling unit or a grou of cash-gansrating unlts rapresanis the lowest leveal within
tha fAraup at whlen goodwlll is manitored for internal maragemant purposes and whizh are
expectod to benefit from the eynery’as of the comrbinakion.

Goodwill on acqulsition of jointly controlled sntities and aseociates is ing'udad in the
Ivestments In Jsintly controlied entities and associates respectively. Such goodwill is
tested for impairment aa part of the overall Investment amaunt,

Prapearly, plant and eduipment

Property, plant and sguiptnent are stated at cost less accumulsted depreciation and
accurmilated Impalmaent lesses. Depreciatlon is calcuiated using the straight-Ine method
ter write-off the cost of the assets to thelr residuat values ovee thelr aetimatad useful lives,
The uzeful lives for this purpose are as {ollows:

Alrcraft

- engines 7 or 25 years
- alframe Fords WEELrS
- service potential 7 or 13 years
Aircraft spares 10 yenes

firgraft fixtures and filtllngs Usedul lifa of aireraft or remaining lease

tarm of alrcrakt, whichaver iz shorier

Buildings
- gimulator RR.7E years
- hangar of) years
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT AGCCUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED

{il} Froperty, plant and oquipment (continued)

Matar vehicles B yaars
Qlfee oquipthent, furniture and fittings 5 years
Office renovatlon 5 years
Simulator sguipmant 25 yaars
Qperating plant and ground equipment B years
Kitehen equipment 5 yoars
I fligghit soipment B ypars
Tralning equipmant Eyears

Assetas not yat in operation are stated at cost and are not depreciated untit the assats are
rsacy far the’r intended Use.

Rasidual vaues, whers appliicabla, are reviewasd anpualy ageinst prevailing market rates
at the balance sheat date for equivaleni aged assets and dapraciation ratas are adjusted
acoordingly on 8 prospective basis, For the currert financlal yaar andsd 31 Decembet

2010, the eatimated residual valus for alreraft alfranas and engines i3 10% of their cost,

An element of the coat of an acguired aircraft is atirlbuted on acquisition 1o ts service
potantial, reflecting the malntenance condltion of its englnes and aiframe. This cost,
which ean ayquate to 2 substantial elemant of the total aireralt cost, is amonised over the
shorter of the pericd to the next checks or tha ramaining life of the alroraft.

Tha cost of subssquant majar aifrarng and engine nairtenance checks as well as
upgradas to leased assels are capitalised and amorlised over Lha shorter of the pericd to
the naxt check or the remaining life of the aivral.

At each halance sheet date, tha Group assesees whather there iz any indicalion of
impairment. |f such an indication axisls, an analvels s pafarmed to assess whether the
rarrying armount of the asset Is fully recoverable. A write down is made if the carrying
amaount sxgeods the recoverable amaunt. Sea accounting policy Mote 2(f) an impairmant
of assets,

Ginine and |osses on disposals are determined by comparing progeeds with the carrylng
amount and are included in the income statement.

Acvanue payments and optlon payments mads in respect of aireraft puschase
commitmeants and optiona to acouire aircrafl whera the balance is expected to be funded
by mortgage financing are recordsd &t cost. On acquisition of the related airoraflt, thesa
payments ars Included as parn of the cost of aireralt and are depraciatad from that date,

il
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SUNMMARY OF SHGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES (CONTINUED)

(o)

i

Investmeants

Investments in subsidiares, jotly contralled entitles and assoclates are stated at cosl
less aocourmnulated impairment lossas. Yhere an indication of impairmant exisls, the
carrying arnaur of the investiment is assoasad and wititan down immediataly to ile
racoverabla armaslnt {ses Maote 2(F).

Impaitment of usssts

Asse’s tnat have an indefinite useful tife are not sublect to amartisation and are testad for
Impai-meant arnually, or a3 and when events or cireumstances aecur indicating that an
Impairmant may exist. Praparty, plant and equipmeant and cther nor-current assets,
irclucing intangible azsets with definita usseful lives, are reviewed for impairmant osses
whenaver svanis ar changss In circumstances ndicare that the carrying ameunt may nat
b recovarable. An lmpsirmert loss 18 recognised for the arourt by whilch the carryirg
amount of the asget excesds iis recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is ine
Righer of an asset's fair value lg3s cost to sell and valug-in-uag, For tha purposs of
assessing impalmont, assets are grouned at the lowest level far which thare ia separately
ldantitiable cash flows (sash-generating units). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairmeant are reviewst for possible reversal at each reporting dats.

Any impairment fogs arising is charged o the income statarment unless it reverses a
previous revaluation in which case it is charged ta the revaluation su-plus, Any
subseoueant increase 1 recoverable amount is recognissd ir the Income statetnant unless
it reverses an impairment loss on a revaluad asset In whilch cass it is taken o revaluation
surplus,

Malrtanzances and ovarhiaul
Cwnad airgradt

Tha accounting for the cost of provicding mejor alfreme and certaln engine mainternance
checks far own irgraft 2 descdbed in the accounting policy for property, plam and
aopliprient.

Leazad gircraft

Vihera the Group has a commitment to maintalh aireraf: heid under opareting leases,
provigion is made during the lease term for the rectilication abligalions contalned within the
lwazw agrasmants, The provlzions are based an estlmated JUture cosls of major aifdramaa,
certain engine maintenance checks and one-off costs Incurred at the end of the lease by
rrasiding apprepriats charges to the Incorne statamsnl salculaled by refarshcs to the
humber of houre or gyclas operaied during the financial year,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 21 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTIMUED)

(i)

in

L es
Flnance leases

Legees of proparty, plant and squipment whes tha Group assumes substantially all the
benaflts and rlzks of ownership are classified as finance leasas,

Finance laases are capitallsed at the estimatad present valug of the underlying leass
payrnents at the date of inception, Each lzase payment is allscaisd batween tha Tability
and finance charges 8o as to achisve a perledlc constant rate of irterest on the balance
outstanding. Tha corresponding rertal chiigations, net of finance charges, are included In
payabilas. The Interasi element of the finance charge is charged to tha Income statement
over the lease period so as to protduse & conatant patlodle rate of Interest on the remaining
balznoe of tha liakhllity ior sach pedad.

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance lease contracts are deproslated
overthe estimated nseful fife of the asset, in accordance with the annual rates stated in
Mode 2(d) above. Whers thars is na reasonable certainty that the cwnershlp will be
trarstarrad ta the Group, the asaest s depraclated ovar the shorter of the lease tarm and fts
useful life,

Cperating leases

Leases of assels where a significant portion of the rieks and rewards of awnership are
retained by the lessor arg classified ag opsrating leases, Payments mads under operating
lnases (net of incentives receivad from the lesser) are charged to *he income stabément on
a straignt-line hasis avar the leaze pariod.

Assots leased out by the Company urder ope-ating leasss ars Incuded in propaerty, plant
and equigment it tha balancs sheet. They are dapreciated cver their axpectad Leeful
lives on & basls conaistent with similar owned praparty, plant ang egulpmant. Rental
incoma (net of any incentives given to lesseas) ia recognised on a straight line bas's ovar
the lease term.

Irvertorisas

Inverigrias commprising sparas and consumalles used internally for repalrs and
rrintenance are stated af the lower of cosl and net realisabl value,

Cast is determined on the weighted average basis, and comprises the purchase price and
Incidentals incurred in brirging the invantarlss to their present leaation and condillon.

Mat realisable valua represents the eslimated galllng price in the crdinany couss of
business, |ess all estimaled costs te cormpletion and applicable variable salling expenses.
In arriving at net realisab'e value, dus allowance is made for all damagad, cbsolets and
slow-moving itams.
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 {GONTINUED)

SUMMARY QF BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (COMTINUED}

{0 Financ'al assets

(i

{ii)

Classifloation

The Group has changed ita accounting nalivy for recogniton and measuremeant of
linansial assets upon Lhe adoptlon of FRS 138 "Flrancial instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” on 1 Januany 2010,

The Giroup classifies 13 financial assets In the following categories: at fair value
thraugh profit or loss, loans and racelvablas and available-for-ssle. The
clagsification depends qn the purpase for which the financlal assets were
acquirgd. Managemant determines the classilication at inltial recognition.

Financial assefa at fair value throuch profib o: loss

Firanchkl assets at falr value theough profit or lots are financial assets hald for
trading, A flnancial aseal iz classified [ thlg calegary # [ is acquired or incurred
pringipally for the purmpoess of salling or repurehasing 1t in the near term. Derivatives
arp alsa categorised as held for trading unless they are des’gnated A hedyes.

l.oans and recaivaibles are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are nat gquotad in an active rmarkel. They are included
In aurrgnd assets, oxcapt far maturties graater than 12 months after tha erd of the
raporting parlad, These are dlassified as non-current agsets. The Group's [oans
and receivables comprise ‘irade and cther receivables’ and 'deposits, cash and
bank balances' in the alance shoots,

Available-for-szle financial Aasets

Avallable-for-gale financial assets sre non-derivatives that are either designatad In
this categary or not classified in any of the ather calegariza, They are included in
non-gurrent asaets unless the investrnsnl matures or managemant Intends ko
disposs of it wilhin 12 months of the end of the reparting perod.

Recognition and inflial measurernerd

Fegular purchases and sales of finanuial assels are recognised on the trads-date,
the dale on which the Group commits 1o purchase o sell the asaat,

Finangial assets are initjally regognised at falr valug plus transaction costs for all
financiad assets, not cardad at fait value through profit or loss, Financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or losa are initially recognisad st fair value, ard
lransaction costs are expensed in profit ot loss,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SLIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES (COMTINUED)

i Financial aasets (continusd)

(i)

{iv;

Subseguent measuremant - galng and lassos

Avaiahle-for-sale firancial assets and financial assats through profit or loss are
subsaquantly carrlad at falr value. Loans and racelvables are subssquently carried
at amottlsad cost using the effestive interest method.

Changes In the {alr value of avallable-for-sale financial assets are recognised In
ather comprahensiva income, except for irnpairment [osses (see zocounting policy
Mote 2ij){ivy) and forsign exchanga gaing and losses on monetary assets. The
exchangs diflarensas on monsla:y assets are recognised in *he incomo
statetnent, whereas exchange differences on non-monatary asséls aw recognised
in other comprehensive inceme ag parl of fair value changa.

Interest and dividend income on available-for-sale financial assots are recognised
separately in prefit or loss. Interes! on availatls-for-sals debit sacurities caloulated
using the eflectiva interest method s recogrised inprofit or less, Bividend Income
on avallablz-for-sale equity Instrurnents ere recagnised in the incoma statement
when the Group's right to receive payments is astablishad.

Subgeguant measlrarant - mpalrment of financial asseta
Assats carried et amortised cost

Tha Group essessas at the end of the -eparting period whethe- thara is objectiva
envidence that a financial asset or group of financial asaets iz Impaired. A fnanclgl
assel ar a group of inanclal assets s Impalred and impaltment losses are Incurred
wily if theta is objactive evidencs of impairment as a teault of ona or mora everts
that ooqurred alter the initial recognition of the assel {a 'loss svant’) and that loss
evenl {for evants) has an Impact on the estimatad future cash flowa of the financial
agudl or group of inancia’ asests that can be reliably estimated,

The ¢riteria ihal the Group Uses to detertnine that thers is objective svidanse of an
Irpairteeart loss Irclude:

. Significant financial difficulty of the [ssuer or abligor,;

» A braach of contract, such as a dafault or delinquency in intarest or
principal payments;

® The iraup, far economic or legal reasons ralating o tha borrower's
financial difficuly, grenting to the borrower a coneesslen that the lander
walld not atheralse consldar,

. It becomes probabls that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other
financial recrganisation;
. Disappearance of an attive market for that financial azset bacause of

financial difficuties; or
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING MOLICIES (CONTINUED)

iy Firanzial asests (continued)

{i)

Subseqguent maasurament — Impairment of lnancial asssts (contiqued)

. Observable data indicating that there is & mmeasuratls decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a portfollo of financial aszets singe tha
initial recognition of these assets, athough the decrease cannot yet be
identitied with the irdividug! fnancial assets in the parfello, including:

(il advarse changas in the paymant status of borrowers in the
porfalle; and
{li} national o local econarmic concitions 1hat corralate with defaults

on the asasta inthe portfolo.

The amaunt of the l0es is measured ag the differance belween the aseat’s
carrying amount and the prasent value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not beon Incurred) discounted at the financ!al esset's
ariginal affective irerset rate. Tha asget's carnyirg amount of the assat is red e
and the amount of the |oes is recggnised in the Income statement, I 'loans and
receivablas’ have a varlabls interest rate, the disseunt rate for measuring any
impainnment lnss |s the current afective intarest rate delerminad under the
wontract. As a practical expedient, the Group may mieasure Impalrmeant an the
Basis of an inslrumeant's fair valie dsing &n ebservable markst prica.

If. I & subsequent perod, the amaunt of the impaiment loss decreases and the
decregse can be related chjeclively o an event accu ving after the impaitment
was recognised (sueh ag an improvemant In the debtor's oredit rating), the
ravarsdd of the previously recognised impairment foss is recodnisad in the income
gtalement.

Whean an asset s uncollectible, it is written off againat the relatad allswarce
account, Such asqets are wiitten off afler all the necessay procedures have beean
completad and the amaunt of the loss has been detarmined,

The Group assesses at the and of the reporting period whether thers Is chjective
avidsnce that a financial asaet or a group of financlal Gesets is impaired.

I The case of aquity eecurities claselfied as evailabla-for-sale, in additlan to the
criteria for ‘assets carrad at amortised cost’ above, & slgnificant or prolarngad
daclina in the falr valus ol the sactrity below its cost is alan considered as ar
indleator that the assets are impalred. [f any such evidences exlsts for availablg-for
sale financial asgety, the cumulative loss that had boen recegnised directly in
equity 1s remowved from eguily and recognised in tre haome statement. The
amount of cumulative lese that i reclassified to the incomes statement iz tha
differance betwesn the acquisition cost and the current fair valus, legs any
impairment loss an that financial asset praviously recogrised in the incomea
statamant, impalrment losses recegnised in the income statemant on eguity
instruments clagsified as availabla-forsale ara not ravarsed through tha income
statemant,
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SUMMARY CGF SIGNIFICANT AGCOQUNTIMG POLICIES (CONTIMUELD)

il

Flnancial assats {cantinued)

fiv)

Subsequant maasurement — Impairment of financlal assets (cantinued)

Asaels clagsifed as avallable-for-sale {(continued)

The Graup has applizt the palley acsording o ihe transitional provislans of FRS
138 by re-rmeasuring all financia) assets, a5 aporopriate, and recording any
atdjustmants to tng previous carrying amounts to spening retained earrings ar, if
apprapriats, ancther category of aguity, of the current financial yuar.
Gomparathves for financiad instrurments have nit besn adlusted and thersfors the
corresponding balancea are noel comparable. Refar to Mote 40 for the impact of
this change in acsaunting pollsy.

De-recegnition

Firancial assels are de-recognised when the rights to recsive cash flows from the
Irvestrnents have sxpired or have been transferrad and the Group has ransferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Whan available-for-gale financial asaests are sold, the ascurnulated fajr valle
adjustments recognised in ather comprehensive incomes ars reclagsified to profit
o loss.

Difgetting finanalal instrurmeants

Financial assets and liabllities arg offset and the net amount presentad In the statemant of
finangial pusition when there s a legally enfarcaatile rght to offset the recognised amourds
and thera is an intention to geitle on & net basls, of reallse the asset and settls the liabilty

simultansously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 ([CONTINUED)

SUMMARY QF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

(1}

Darivative financial instruments and hadglng activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair valus on the date & detivative contract ia antarad
inta and are subseguently re-measured at their falf valus. The method of recognising the
rasulting gain or luss depends on whether the derivative i deslgnaied as a hedging
insteurnent, and if 5o, the nature of the item beity hedged. The Group designates certair
derivalives as efther:

{a) hedges of the fair valus of recognised assets or llablitles ot a firm camrlttment
{fair vaiug hedgel: ar

()} hedpes of & paricular risk associated with a resognised asset or liabllity or 4
highly prebable farscast transaction feash flow hadga),

The Graup documents at the incaption of the transaction the relatianshlp between hedgling
insirurnants and hadged ftema, Aa wall as s rlsk maragoernent obectives and strategy for
undarteking various Nadying transactions. The Group alsa documents ita asssssment,
heth b hadge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are usad
in hedging transactiona are highly effeclive in offselling changes In fair vaiues ar cash
fiows of hedged #emsa,

Thafalr values of various derivative instramants used for hadalng purposes ere disclosed

" in Nate 80. The full fair valus of a hedding detlvative is classified as a non-curren: asset or

lighility whan tha remalning hadged item 12 mora than 12 months, and a5 8 curtent aesat
ar iability whan the rarmalning maturity of the hedged item iz jezs than 12 maontha,

{a) Fair valug hedga

Changas In the fair value of derivatives that are designatad and qualify gs fat
value hedges are rmeordad I the Incarne statement, tegethar with eny changes in
thiee falr value of the hodged asaet of liability that are attributable to the hedged
riglk. The Group only applies fair value hedga accounting far hadging fixed inlerast
tHak on barrawings, The galn or loss ralating to the effective porticn of Interest rate
swaps hedging fixed rate borrowings is recognised in the income slatement, within
finance costs’. The gain o [oaa relating to the inelfective porlon s recognised in
the income stalerment within ‘other gainsilosses) - net’. Changas in the falr valye
af the hedge fixed rate borrowings ettributable 1o interest rate risk ara recognised
in the iIncome statement within finange cogts’,

If the hetige no longer maets the critaria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to
the carying amourt of & hadged ftem for which the affective Interest method |s
used ig amarlized to the incorme statement over the period to maturity.
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED

SUMMARY OF SIGHIFICANT ACCQUNTING FOLICIES (CONTINUED)

{h Dervative financial instruments and hedging actividies {sontinusd)

{b}

Cash flow hedga

The effectve portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives 1hel are designated
ard gualify as casn flow hedges is recagnized in cthar camprebansive income,
The gain or loas relafing to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in tho
income statement within 'other gains/lesees) — nat’,

Amourts accumulated in equity are reclassified to the income statement in the
patiads whan the hadogod item affacts profis ar las2 tor exemple, whe the
forecast sale that s hedged takes placa). The guin or lass relating to the effective
portion of intereat rate swaps hadging vadable rate barrowings ls recagnisad In
ther incame slatamert within 'ravanue’,

However, when the forecast fransaction that is hedged results in the recognition of
a non-financial aszet ifor example, inventory or praperty, plant and squlprrent),
the gakis and losses praviously deferred In aguily are transferraed from equily and
included in the initial measurament of tha cosi of the asset, Tha deferred amounts
ara ullimalaly recogmiaed in cost of goods sold in the case of inventory or in
depreciation In the case of property, plant and sanioment,

Whan a hedging ingtrument expires ar is sold, erwhen a hedga no longer meats
the critaria for hadge accaunting, any cumuistive gein o losg exigting it egqulty at
that ime remaing in equity and is recognised when the forecast Transaction is
welmataly recognised in the income statement. When a forecast franzactian is no
lergier oxpected la occlr, the cumulative gain or 095 that was reparied in agquity is
immediataly transfarad to tne Ineome statament within 'other galnsf{loszas) - net'.

The Graup has applied the policy accarding 1o the transitional proviaizns aof FRS
138 by recogrlsing and measuring darivatives, as approprlale, and recording any
adjuatments ¢ the previcus carrying amcunts to the opaning ratained earnings or,
iF appropriate, anather category of equity, of the current financia! vear,
Comparatives far fimanclal Instrameants heve net besn adisted and theretors the
corresponding balances are not comparable. Rafer to Mote A0 for the impact af
Il changs In aceaunling policy.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF BIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEL)

()

{n)

Trade rece'vables

Trade racaivab’ez sre amounta due from sustomers for marchandise sold or services
performed in the ardinary course of business. If collection is expected in ane year or laas
far in the narmal oparating eyele of tha busineas if longer), they are slasslfisd as current
dssats. Othenwlse, thay are presentad &g non-currant s s,

Trade recelvables are tecoghised Initizlly at fair valus and subseguertly measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, loas allowancs for impairmant.

Cagh and cash equivalents

For the purpoee of the cash flow staternants, cash and cash equivalenis cutvprise cash on
hand, bank balkarcss, demand deposits and other short term, highly lleeid mvestments
with ariginal maturiiies of three months or less, loss bank averdrafts. Deposiie held as
pledged securities for tevm loans grantsd are not included as cash and cash equivalanta.

Provigicns

Provisigns are recagnlsed when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation

#3 A rosult of past avents, when it is probable that an outfiow of rosources wit be required

k2 setlle the obligation, and when & rllable estimate of the amount can be made,

Provisiona are not recoanisad for future operaing logses,

&Share capital

i Claasification
Ordinary shares with digcratlonary dividends are clagsified as equity. Clher
shires are classified as equity andior liability accarding to the eeanomlc
substance of the paricular instrument, Diswibutions o holders of a finangia
ingtrurment classified as an equlty instrummant are chargad diraetly 0 sguity.

(b Share issua cosls

Incrernantal extarnal costs directly afrbutable to the issuance of new shares or
uptions are slown in equity as a dedugiion, net of tax, from the procesda,

(i Rlvidiands to shareholders of the Company
Bividends an ordinary shares are recognised ag a lability ir the parlad 10 which
they are declared. A dividend declared after the end of tha reparting pariod, bt

lefore the financial statements ara authorisad for ssua, s not recognised as &
liablllty at the and of tha raparting period.
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NOTES TQ THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 [CONTINUED)

SEUMMARY OF SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES (CONTINUED)

{al

Borrowings

Hoerrowings aeg ilkally resagrised based onthe proceeds received, net of transaciion
vasts incurren. The finance costs, which represent the dilfarence between the nel
procaeds and the tatal ameunt of the payments of these barrowings, are alfocated to
periats over the terrr of the borrowings at s constant rate on the Sartylng amaurt ang are
charged to ihe income statement.

Intarast, dividands, eses and gains relating to s financial instrument, o a component
par, classiied as a linblity is reportad within finance gost In the Incorne statement,

Buarrawings are classlfled as current liabilities unleas the Group has an unconditional right
to detar setilarment of the lability for at lzast hwelve montha aflar the balance sheet dats,

InGora taxas

Currant tax exjietise s dotermined accoading 1o the tax laws of each jurlsdictlan in whick
tha Groug pperates and Includes all taxes hased Lpon the taxable profits, including
withhoiding tHxea payakle by foreign subsidlaras, jointly controlled antitisa or sssociatas.

Defurred tax is racognised in full, using the liability method, on tamporarny differsnces
atising befween the amounts altrizuted to assets and liabifitles for tax purposas and thair
garying amaunts in the financkal staiemants,

Defatrad tax assets are recognised for the carryiomward of unused tax losses and tax
credits (including irvastment ik allowances) to the extent that it is probabla that taxeble
profits will be avallable against which the unutilised tax leases and unused tax credits can
ba utilised.

Defervad tax is recogoized on temporary differences arizing on inveshments in
subsldiaries, jointly controlled entities and assogiates axcapt whare the timing of the
revarsal of tne temparary differance can ba controllad and It |5 probable that the tamporary
ditfersnea wlil not raverse in the foresesabls future.

The Group's share of income taxes of |cintly controlled entittes and associates arc
inchuded inthe Group's share of results of jointly controlled entities and associates,

Defarrad tax is detarmined using lax ralss (and fax laws) that have bezn erachsd or

subslantially eriacted by the balance sheet date and are expacted to apply when the
related deferred iax agsst is realised or the deferrad Lax liabllity 15 seltlad,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (GONTINUEL)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOLUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(&)

{t)

Empioyea benefitg
)| Bhort tatm employes bengtils

Weges, salares, paid annuel leave and sick lzave, bonuses and non-monetary
benefits are acorued in fhe financial year In which the associated servicas ary
rendered Ly the smployess of the Group.

{ii’ Defined contributipn plan

The Group's eontributions to the Emp'oyess’ Pravident Fund ara charged to tha
income statament in the fnancial year to which thay ralate. Onee the
conteiputizns have bean pald, the Group has no further paymnent oblications.
Prapald contributicns are recognised as an asset to Ihe sxdaent 114l 2 cash refund
or & redustion in the future payments iz avallahle,

(i Share basad paymants

FAS 2 — Sharg-based Payment requirss recognition of share-based payment
transactiens Including the value of share opticna in the financlal statements,
Thara is no impact on the financial staterents of the Growp following the
preapective aoplleation of FRS 2 in 2008 as all the share options of the Company
weara Jully vested prior to the effective date of the standard.

Revenus recognitian

Schadubod passanger flight and chartered ilight income are recognised Upon 1he randering
of tranapertation aervices and where apnlicabls, are staled net of discounts. The value of
seals aold for which servicas bave nat baen rendered is included in aurrent liablitlee as
salas in advanca, Havenua from airgraft rentals is recorded on s siraightYine basis over
tha term of the lezse.

Other revanueg which includes fusl surcharge, inserance surcharga, admimstrative fees,
exXoess Dagoage and baggage handling faes, are recognissd Upen tha completon of
services renderad and whers aoplicabls, are stated net of discounts, Freight and ather
related revenus are recognlsed upon the sompletion of services rendered and where
epplicable, are stated net of discounts. Income from the provision of tour operationg (beoth
inbound and outbound) and lavel agency services s recognised upon BEMvicas aing
retidaret and where appllcable, are stated net of discounts,

Renta| income is recagnised on an accrusl basis,

Imerest income i recoynised using the effectlve Interest method. When a loan and
receivabl fs impalred, the Group reduces the carrying armount to its recoverable amount,
being the esfimatad future cash flow discourted at the odging effective interest rate of the
inafrumant, and cantinues urwindlng the discount as interest income. [ntarast Income on
impaired loans and recelvabiles are racognlased using the original effective interast rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUELD)

SUMMARY OF BIGHIFICANT AGCOUNTING PCOLICIES ([CONTINUED;

[y Foreign cutrencies

(i)

(il

(i)

Functlonal and présentation currency

llems Included n 1ne franclal staternents of each of the Group’s entites are
measured Uslng the currency of the primary sconomic envi-osnment inwhich the
entity aperaten ['the functional cirrancy”. Tho conselidatad firanelal satements
are prasented in Minggit Malaysla, which i3 the Sompany's functonal and
precatation currenay.

Transactions and balances

Fargign currency transacttans are translated into the functional currancy using the
exchange rates pravaillng at the dates of 1he fransactions, Forslan exchange
paing and losses resulting from the setlament of sush lransactions and from Lhe
translation at year-and sxchanga rates of monetany assets and liabilltios
dengminaled ir foraign currancias are recogniaed in the incame statement.

Group compentes

The results and financial poaition af all the Group entitiea [nane of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary econoeny] that have g functional currency different
from the presantailen currency arg translated into the presentation currency as
foalleywa:

{il assete and liahilities for aach balance sheoet presantad are ranslated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance shest;

(i) income and expenges tor each Income stalement sre translated at
avarage sxchangs rates (unless this average is nol & reasonable
appraximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevaiting on the
transeclion dalgs, in which case iheome and expretisas are translated at
the clates of the transasiions); and

(i) all rasulting exchange diffarances ara recognised as a separale
comparanl of eouity,

{in consolidaticn, exchange dilferennes ariging from the tranglation of the nel investrmant
in tareign operatians are taken 1o shareholders' squity, When g foreign oparation is
disposad of ur gald, such exchenge differences thal were recorded in squlty are
recognised in tha income statemant ag part of the gain o luss an disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (GONTINUED)

(v}

(w)

Contingent Nabifites

The Graup does nol recognise a contingant llability but disclosss ite existence in tha
financlal statements. A contingent liatility |s & possible obligation that arlses fram past
events whose axislence will be conflrned by umcartaln futurg events bayand the cantral of
the Giroup or a present abligation that s nat renognised because it is not probable that an
tutftow of ressurces will be required to setile the obligation. & cantingent llablity also
ariges ir 1he extremealy rare gircumstance whers thare is a lnbility that cannot be
recapnised becauss it cannot be measured rallably.

In the aecguiaition of aubsidlaries by the Group urder 2 business combination, the
centingant llabilltes assurmed are messured initia'ly at their fair velues at the aequlsition
date, Irrespactiva of tha axtent of any minority infereats.

Tha Group racognises separataly the contingsnt liabilites of the actuirees as part of
allocating the cost of a business comlination whers their fair values can be measured
reliably, Whera tha fair values cannet be measared reliably, th resu'ting effect will be
raflecisd in the goodwill arsing Trom the asguistions,

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the Group measures the continsent llabilities that are
recogrised ssparataly at the date of acquisition at the higher of the armount that wauld be
racognisad [N accordance with the provisions of FIRS 137 'Provigiana, Contingant
Lighilities and Contingent Assata’ and the amount initially recogniaea less, whan
apprapriate, cumulative amartisation recegnlged In accordanzes with FRS 118 ‘Faven.le’

Segrnant reporting

Operallng sagmants are repotad in a manner conslstent with the internal reporting
provided to thoe chisf operating decision-marker. The ehief operating desision-maker, wha
is responsible for allecating resoursss and assassing petformancs of the eperating
seqments, has boan identifled as the managernsnt committes that makes stratagic
dacisitns,
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

Estimatas and judaments dre continualy avaluated by the Disectors and are bagad on historical
oxpunancg and other factors, Including expectations ¢l future events thal are believed o be
reaaoaable under the clioumsatanges,

The Group makes estimates and assumptiong concerning the fultre, The resuliing accaunting
estimatzs will, by definition, rarely aqual the ralatad actual restite. Te enhance the infermation
content of the slirmates, certain key variables that are antic’pated to have a materal impast to tha
Group's results and financial position are lested for gansithvity to changes in the undarlying
pararnaters, The estimalss and agsumplions that have a significant risk of carsing o matarial
adjusiment te the carrying amounts of zsssts and liakilities within the next yeur ara sxplaned

[l T

i Eslirated Usaful fives and resklual values of aireraft frames and engires

Tha Group reviews annually the estimated usedul llves and residual valuss of airoraft
frames nnd pngines tased on faclers such as business plans and slrategles, expasted
level of usage, future technalogical developments and market prices,

Futire results of cperalions soJld oa matadally affectad by changes in thesa estimates
Brought alrout by ¢chang2s inthe factors mentlened ancve. A raductlon inthe eatimaled
uzetyl lives and reaidual values of alrcrafl lramas and sngines as disclosed In Note 2(2),
would Inereass the recorded depreciation charge and deerease the carrying ameount of
praperty, plant and aquipmesit.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

CHITIGAL ACGCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS [CONTINUELD)

(I

fii

Referrsd Wy aasos

Deferred tax assets are rocognised o the extant that it Is probatle that future taxable
profits will be avallable against which temporary difierences can ba utillsed. Estimating
the future taxable profts invelves slgnificast assumptions, espacially in respasct of faras,
load factor, fusl price, mainenance costs and currensy movemants. Thesa sssumotions
Fieva bean built based on past perfarmance and adjusted foe ner-racurting sircumstancas
and & reasonabla growlh ride, Howevar, evan whers the aclual taxable profits iniba future
are & porcent lowar than the anticipated taxable profits, the deferred tax agsets can still be
fully utllises.

Fecoveralility of Iniercompany balances

The Group has investments in Thal AirAsia Oo. Lid and PT Indonesla Airssia, both of
which provicdes A rangsortation services, as disclosed 1n Motes 14 anc 16 to the financial
staernents respaclively. As at the balancae sheat date, the amounta owlng by these
related parties amourted 1o RRMSE.5 miion (2009 FIMIEE. 4 milkon) and AM2ES.1 eqlllia
(2005 AW 445,08 million) respectively. Mo siowances for Impairment have bean provided
far thesa bakneas as the Directors are of the view that thess relaled partizs would have
sufficiant fu-ura funds to repay theee debls, based on the profectad cash flows of these
entitiae.

Waluadion of availabledor-sale equily investments

The Girgup &z an investment in an unquoted carporation, AirAsia X Sdn Bhd, which was
craviously classified as other invasiments and 3 now calegorisad witqls avallahle-for-saln
firansial assets upon the adoption of FRS 138, The Group fellows the guidance of FAS
139 teo determine when the vaiuation of an available-tor-sals equity investmeant and it it is
iMpaired. This determination requires a hich degree of suljeclivily and signifisant
judgment, In malking Lhig judgrmant, the Group s dependeat an the ey bases and
asaurmptions wiish Includs, armong ather factars, the pricas of fusl, fares, load factor,
clirancy mavaments; and the financial health of and shert tanm businass autlesk for the
investes, inckiding factors sush as industry and route parformanca, changes in technolegy
and oparational and financing cash flows,
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBEHR 2018 (CONTINUED)

REVENUE

Passenner soat salss

Aftcraft aparating leeae [neome
SBurcharges and feas

Travel and tour sparations
Ciifer revenue

CHher revenue inclutes sxcess baggage, bapgane handling fee, freigyl and cancellatian,

2,048,005 3,132 8 3,864,459

Giroun Ceormpany
2018 2004 2010 2004
FKG00 Rw'0a0 RAO00 RM'O00
2020820 2,139,011 2830920 2,138,011
A58 443 220,332 208 943 30,4952
13,938 I RE 13,935 51,109

4z 636 60,852 . .

G EhE 352,513 B0 BEB 852 513
4,072,049

dosumentation and boaking fees amounting to AM539.9 million (2009 AM3G4.0 million) for the

Graup and Company.

STAFF COSTS

Wapea, sakaries, bonus and allowancas

Deflnad cantribution retirepant nlan

[mctuded in staff costs is Executive Dirgttors’ remuneratton which is analysad ag follows;

Crocutive Dirgclors
- basic salaties, bonus and allowances
- defined contribution plan

Mat-executlve Directors
- foeg

Groun Gompany

2010 2003 2010 2008
FW' 00D AMOCE Ftiv'000 RM'000
318,316 278707 316,845 278,379
42,469 26,295 42 299 26,172
480,785 308,002 358,941 304,551

Groug and Gompary

2010 =004
HW0C0 FARMCO0
14,400 8,640
1,728 1,087
2,203 483
18,3 10,660
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

BTAFF COSTS (CONTINUEL

The ramuneration payable to the Uirectors of the Company is analysed as follows:

....... Executive Mop-execitive
2010 2009 2010 2009
Fange.sf ramaneration
RM100,007 to FAMA1S0,000 - - - 3
RM160,061 1o AM200,500 - - - 3
RM300,001 to HM35C,000 - - 2 -
FM350,001 1o RlA00,000 - - 3 .
RWM450,001 to RMS00,000 - . 1 ;
RM4.006,001 to RWS,000,000 . 1 .
AMS,000,001 to RWE,000,000 . 1 .
RIM7,000,001 to RM8,000,000 1 . .
RVIS,008,001 to MMS,000,000 1 . .

Set out below are details of aurstanding options over the ordinary shares of the Campany granted
urder the E308 o the Dirsctors:

Exerclam
Expiry price Al At
Grant date date Hidishare  1,1,2610 Exarolsed Lepgae 21122010
'000 ‘000 s, 000
1 Seplember 2004 6 Juna 2614 1.08 1,200 . - 1,200
2010 2009
000 ‘000

Mumber af shgre pptians vestad at balance sheot date 1,200 1,200

During the previous financial year, the exers'se patiod of the ESCS which explrad on & June 2009
was extended for a furthsr & yvearsg o & June 2014,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 (CONTINUED)

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

The following iterms have been chargedi{aredited) in ardving at ather operating axpensses:

Property, plant and aquipmani

« Writa aft

« Imypairment

Hental of land and buifding
Auditors' remureration

- gLt fass

- alodit related foes

- non-audlt faos

Henlzl of equipmearnt

Adveartising costs

Amarltisation af long tarm prepayments
Amartisation of cther inveslmants
Met fareign exchange {pain}iioss
- Reslised

- Unrgallzed

OTHER LOSEES -~ NET

Interask rate contracts - Held for trading

Foraard farsign exchanges confracts — Hetd “or trading

Fual sontracts - Held for trading

Ineffectivenass on cash flow hedges (Note 30)

Tolel

UTHER INGOME

Gain on dispasals of property, plant
and equipmant
Others

..................................... Groug Campany
2010 2009, 2010 2009
FM'O00 AM'000 RM'300 Ri'000
- 388 - 5HR
6,996 . 8,006 .
10,877 4,161 10,877 4,187
585 457 LG 438
455 10 255 10
1,454 &1 1,£94 51
2,151 1,475 2,151 1,475
28,893 33,702 28,008 93,987
24,741 9,645 24,741 9,845
12 11 12 11
(7,125) {49,020 (7,483 (49,08R)
64,601 96,164 64,595 368,168
__Group and Company
2010 2609
AKFOGD RMO00
{42, 588) .
25,351
882 .
(6,054)
(22,478
R, Group Giompany
2010 2000 200 2008
RM'O0D RiO00 Ri4'000 FNFGO0
1,911 30, 666 1,81 80,656
34,532 71,667 84,066 71,687
35,843 102,963 35,367 102,383
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AlRASIA BERHAD

{Incarporated in Malaysia)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 20710 ([CONTINUEDR)

FINANGE INCOMEACOSTS)

Finﬂ_]"lt”:l:ﬂ [Fczerme:

Fareian sxchangs galts on barmwings

- Reglizad

- Uirealised

Interest income

- tleposite with licensed banks

- snef term daposils with fund
maenagement companies

- intarast inocome on ameunts dog fram
associates and jointly controlled entities

- gthar interest income

Finarice costs:

Realzed fureign exchangs oss
on borrowings

Unrealised foreign exchange loss on
armaurnts due from essaciatas and
jolntly controlled entities

Fair value losses on darivative
financial instruments

Interast expense

- bank barrawings

- amadisation of pramlums
for intarest rate cops

- hire-purchaas payahles

Hank facilitiee and cther charges

Med finance incemefsosts)

Groun Cumpgny
2010 2008 alld 2008
RM'000 RGO FRAO00 Bn'0n0
- 2 285 - 2295
741,434 75,810 741,324 76,810
B2G 1,008 26 1,008
260 827 2 602 GE7
53,926 . 54 925 -
9,258 4,864 8246 4.621
808,033 84,505 BOS 023 84,462
(20,208} - (28,208} -
(09,978} {B%,578)
(972,612 {272,512)
{374,364} (AT1141) (374,364 (371,141}
(7,750 - (7, 7E0) .
{10} {12) {10) {12}
{2,.216) §3,818) 3,212 2,818}
{776,138 {374,971 [¥76,1%54) (374,971}
a1 Bas [eah,468) 31,889 (260,503}
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AIHASIA BEHHAD

fincorporated in Malaysig)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2010 [CONTINUED)

TAXATION

Currant taxation

- Malaysian tax

- Foralgh tax
Overprovision of income tax in prior yaaks
Deferred “axation [Mote 14)

Curranl taxation

- Gurrghl linarcial yaar

- Cwverprovision of Income [ax in priar years

Defarred taxation

- Dripination and reversal of temporany
differences

« Tex [neantives

The current taxation charge Iz in respact of interast Incorna which is essessed saparately,

Graup o Compary
2010 2008 2010 2009
KM'Q00 RDO0 FA000 BM'000
12,240 12,401 13,226 12,501
o G687 1,806 2,967 1,805
{10,778) {2,920) {10,776} (2,920)
52,014 104,835 42,014 104,835
37,445 116,021 37,431 116,021
16,207 14,106 18,193 14,108
110,776) (2,820 {10,7786) {2,920
197,852 121,581 157, 852 121,581
(165,828} {18,748} (165,838 [16,748)
37,448 148,02t 118,029

a7 431

The explanation of the ralationship between taxation and pealil befers taxatlon s as follows:

Prodit befare taxation

Tax caloulatod at Malayslan tax rate
of 25% (2009: 25%)

Tex affects ot

= expansas not deductible for tax purposes

- Ineeme niot subject to tax

- temporaty diferences not recaghised
within the ploraer pariod

- {ax incantives

- avar provision of noomes tax inpror years

Taxatian

) CIrnti Company
2019 2002 2010 200
RAk*000 R 000 H 000 HM'O05
1,038 855 g2a,n8q 1,082 504 B18,020
274744 165,578 273,127 164,508
18,078 2,658 19,851 3,626
{73,245} (23,268) {70,245) [23,268)
B2 824 iz 824
(16E,8348) (16, 748) {165,6838) (16,748)
{10,776} {2,920 {10,776) {2 520)
av.dan 146,021 37,431 116,029
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